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action related to the claim or state-
ment at issue, the ALJ or the Sec-
retary shall stay the process imme-
diately. The case may be resumed only 
upon receipt of the written authoriza-
tion of the Attorney General. 

[61 FR 50213, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 73 
FR 76832, Dec. 17, 2008] 

§ 28.45 Settlements. 
(a) HUD and the respondent may 

enter into a settlement agreement at 
any time prior to the issuing of a no-
tice of final determination under § 26.50 
of this title. 

(b) Failure of the respondent to com-
ply with a settlement agreement shall 
be sufficient cause for resuming an ac-
tion under this part, or for any other 
judicial or administrative action. 

PART 30—CIVIL MONEY PENALTIES: 
CERTAIN PROHIBITED CONDUCT 

Subpart A—General 

Sec. 
30.1 Purpose and scope. 
30.5 Effective dates. 
30.10 Definitions. 
30.15 Application of other remedies. 

Subpart B—Violations 

30.20 Ethical violations by HUD employees. 
30.25 Violations by applicants for assist-

ance. 
30.30 Urban Homestead violations. 
30.35 Mortgagees and lenders. 
30.36 Dealers or sponsored third-party origi-

nators. 
30.40 Loan guarantees for Indian housing. 
30.45 Multifamily and section 202 or 811 

mortgagors. 
30.50 GNMA issuers and custodians. 
30.55 Interstate Land Sales violations. 
30.60 Dealers or sponsored third-party origi-

nators. 
30.65 Failure to disclose lead-based paint 

hazards. 
30.68 Section 8 owners. 
30.69 SAFE Mortgage Licensing violations. 

Subpart C—Procedures 

30.70 Prepenalty notice. 
30.75 Response to prepenalty notice. 
30.80 Factors in determining amount of 

civil money penalty. 
30.85 Complaint. 
30.90 Response to the complaint. 
30.95 Hearings. 
30.100 Settlement of a civil money penalty 

action. 

AUTHORITY: 12 U.S.C. 1701q–1, 1703, 1723i, 
1735f–14, and 1735f–15; 15 U.S.C. 1717a; 28 
U.S.C. 1 note and 2461 note; 42 U.S.C. 1437z–1 
and 3535(d). 

SOURCE: 61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, unless 
otherwise noted. 

EDITORIAL NOTE: Nomenclature changes to 
part 30 appear at 87 FR 8197, Feb. 14, 2022. 

Subpart A—General 

§ 30.1 Purpose and scope. 

Unless provided for elsewhere in this 
title or under separate authority, this 
part implements HUD’s civil money 
penalty provisions. The procedural 
rules for hearings under this part are 
those applicable to hearings in accord-
ance with the Administrative Proce-
dure Act, as set forth in 24 CFR part 26. 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.5 Effective dates. 

(a) Under § 30.20, a civil money pen-
alty may be imposed for violations oc-
curring on or after May 22, 1991. 

(b) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $23,727 for each violation. 

(c) Under § 30.40, concerning loan 
guarantees for Indian housing, a civil 
money penalty may be imposed for vio-
lations occurring on or after October 
28, 1992. 

(d) Under § 30.65, a civil money pen-
alty may be imposed for violations oc-
curring on or after the following dates: 

(1) September 6, 1996, for owners of 
more than four residential dwellings; 
or 

(2) December 6, 1996, for owners of 
one to four residential dwellings. 

(e) Under § 30.68, a civil money pen-
alty may be imposed for violations, or 
for those parts of continuing viola-
tions, occurring on or after January 7, 
2002. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 66 
FR 63441, Dec. 6, 2001; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 
2017; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.10 Definitions. 

Since this part is primarily proce-
dural, terms not defined in this section 
shall have the meanings given them in 
relevant program regulations. Com-
prehensive definitions are in 24 CFR 
part 4 (HUD Reform Act). The terms 
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ALJ, Department, HUD, and Secretary 
are defined in 24 CFR part 5. 

Ability to pay. Determined based on 
an assessment of the respondent’s re-
sources available both presently and 
prospectively from which the Depart-
ment could ultimately recover the 
total award, which may be predicted 
based on historical evidence. 

Agent. Any person, including an offi-
cer, director, partner, or trustee, who 
acts on behalf of another person. 

Dealer. A seller, contractor or sup-
plier of goods or services having a di-
rect or indirect financial interest in 
the transaction between the borrower 
and the lender, and who assists the bor-
rower in preparing the credit applica-
tion or otherwise assists the borrower 
in obtaining the loan from the lender. 

Knowing or Knowingly. Having actual 
knowledge of or acting with deliberate 
ignorance of or reckless disregard for 
the prohibitions under subpart B of 
this part or under 24 CFR part 4. For 
purposes of §§ 30.35 and 30.36, knowing or 
knowingly is defined at 12 U.S.C. 1735f– 
14(g). 

Material or Materially. Having the 
natural tendency or potential to influ-
ence, or when considering the totality 
of the circumstances, in some signifi-
cant respect or to some significant de-
gree. 

Person. An individual, corporation, 
company, association, authority, firm, 
partnership, society, State, local gov-
ernment or agency thereof, or any 
other organization or group of people. 

Respondent. A person against whom a 
civil money penalty action is initiated. 

Sponsored third-party originator. A 
sponsored third-party originator as de-
fined at § 202.8 of this title. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 74 
FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009; 77 FR 51468, Aug. 24, 
2012; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 2017] 

§ 30.15 Application of other remedies. 

A civil money penalty may be im-
posed in addition to other administra-
tive sanctions or any other civil rem-
edy or criminal penalty. 

Subpart B—Violations 

§ 30.20 Ethical violations by HUD em-
ployees. 

(a) General. The General Counsel, or 
his or her designee, may initiate a civil 
money penalty action against HUD em-
ployees who improperly disclose infor-
mation pursuant to section 103 of the 
HUD Reform Act of 1989 (42 U.S.C. 
3537a(c)) and 24 CFR part 4, subpart B. 

(b) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $23,727 for each violation. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 72 
FR 5588, Feb. 6, 2007; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 
2016; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, 
July 16, 2018; 84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 
13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 
87 FR 24420, Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 
2023] 

§ 30.25 Violations by applicants for as-
sistance. 

(a) General. The General Counsel, or 
his or her designee, may initiate a civil 
money penalty action against appli-
cants for assistance, as defined in 24 
CFR part 4, subpart A, who knowingly 
and materially violate the provisions 
of subsections (b) or (c) of section 102 of 
the HUD Reform Act of 1989 (42 U.S.C. 
3545). 

(b) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $23,727 for each violation. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 72 
FR 5588, Feb. 6, 2007; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 
2016; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, 
July 16, 2018; 84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 
13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 
87 FR 24420, Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 
2023] 

§ 30.35 Mortgagees and lenders. 

(a) General. The Mortgagee Review 
Board may initiate a civil money pen-
alty action against any mortgagee or 
lender who knowingly and materially: 

(1) Violates the provisions listed in 12 
U.S.C. 1735f–14(b); 

(2) Fails to comply with the require-
ments of § 201.27(a) of this title regard-
ing approval and supervision of dealers; 

(3) Approves a dealer that has been 
suspended, debarred, or otherwise de-
nied participation in HUD’s programs; 

(4) Makes a payment that is prohib-
ited under § 202.5(l). 
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(5) Fails to remit, or timely remit, 
mortgage insurance premiums, loan in-
surance charges, or late charges or in-
terest penalties; 

(6) Permits loan documents for an 
FHA insured loan to be signed in blank 
by its agents or any other party to the 
loan transaction unless expressly ap-
proved by the Secretary; 

(7) Fails to follow the mortgage as-
signment procedures set forth in 
§ 203.664 of this title or in §§ 207.255 
through 207.258b of this title. 

(8) Fails to timely submit documents 
that are complete and accurate in con-
nection with a conveyance of a prop-
erty or a claim for insurance benefits, 
in accordance with §§ 203.365, 203.366, or 
203.368, or a claim for insurance bene-
fits in accordance with § 206.127 of this 
title; 

(9) Fails to: 
(i) Process requests for formal re-

lease of liability under an FHA insured 
mortgage; 

(ii) Obtain a credit report, issued not 
more than 90 days prior to approval of 
a person as a borrower, as to the per-
son’s creditworthiness to assume an 
FHA insured mortgage; 

(iii) Timely submit proper notifica-
tion of a change in mortgagor or mort-
gagee as required by § 203.431 of this 
title; 

(iv) Timely submit proper notifica-
tion of mortgage insurance termi-
nation as required by § 203.318 of this 
title; 

(v) Timely submit proper notification 
of a change in mortgage servicing as 
required by § 203.502 of this title; or 

(vi) Report all delinquent mortgages 
to HUD, as required by § 203.330 of this 
title; 

(10) Fails to service FHA insured 
mortgages, in accordance with the re-
quirements of 24 CFR parts 201, 203, 206, 
and 235; 

(11) Fails to fund loans that it origi-
nated, or otherwise misuses loan pro-
ceeds; 

(12) Fails to comply with the condi-
tions relating to the assignment or 
pledge of mortgages; 

(13) Fails to comply with the provi-
sions of the Real Estate Settlement 
Procedures Act (12 U.S.C. 2601 et seq.), 
the Equal Credit Opportunity Act (15 

U.S.C. 1691 et seq.), or the Fair Housing 
Act (42 U.S.C. 3601 et seq.); 

(14) Fails to engage in loss mitigation 
as provided in § 203.605 of this title. 

(b) Continuing violation. Each day 
that a violation continues shall con-
stitute a separate violation. 

(c)(1) Amount of penalty. The max-
imum penalty is $11,864 for each viola-
tion, up to a limit of $2,372,677 for all 
violations committed during any one- 
year period. Each violation shall con-
stitute a separate violation as to each 
mortgage or loan application. 

(2) Maximum penalty for failing to en-
gage in loss mitigation. The penalty for a 
violation of paragraph (a)(14) of this 
section shall be three times the 
amount of the total mortgage insur-
ance benefits claimed by the mort-
gagee with respect to any mortgage for 
which the mortgagee failed to engage 
in such loss mitigation actions. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 63 
FR 9742, Feb. 26, 1998; 68 FR 12788, Mar. 17, 
2003; 70 FR 21578, Apr. 26, 2005; 72 FR 5588, 
Feb. 6, 2007; 74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009; 74 FR 
14725, Apr. 1, 2009; 78 FR 4059, Jan. 18, 2013; 81 
FR 38935, June 15, 2016; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 
2017; 82 FR 7117, Jan. 19, 2017; 83 FR 32793, 
July 16, 2018; 84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 
13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 
87 FR 24420, Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 
2023] 

§ 30.36 Other participants in FHA pro-
grams. 

(a) General. The Assistant Secretary 
for Housing-Federal Housing Commis-
sioner (or his/her designee) may ini-
tiate a civil money penalty action 
against any principal, officer, or em-
ployee of a mortgagee or lender, or 
other participants in either a mortgage 
insured under the National Housing 
Act or any loan that is covered by a 
contract of insurance under title I of 
the National Housing Act, or a pro-
vider of assistance to the borrower in 
connection with any such mortgage or 
loan, including: 

(1) Sellers; 
(2) Borrowers; 
(3) Closing agents; 
(4) Title companies; 
(5) Real estate agents; 
(6) Mortgage brokers; 
(7) Appraisers; 
(8) Sponsored third-party originators; 
(9) Dealers; 
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(10) Consultants; 
(11) Contractors; 
(12) Subcontractors; and 
(13) Inspectors. 
(b) Knowing and material violations. 

The Assistant Secretary for Housing- 
Federal Housing Commissioner or his/ 
her designee may impose a civil pen-
alty on any person or entity identified 
in paragraph (a) of this section who 
knowingly and materially: 

(1) Submits false information to the 
Secretary in connection with any 
mortgage insured under the National 
Housing Act (12 U.S.C. 1701 et seq.), or 
any loan that is covered by a contract 
of insurance under title I of the Na-
tional Housing Act; 

(2) Falsely certifies to the Secretary 
or submits a false certification by an-
other person or entity to the Secretary 
in connection with any mortgage in-
sured under the National Housing Act 
or any loan that is covered by a con-
tract of insurance under title I of the 
National Housing Act; or 

(3) Is a loan dealer and fails to sub-
mit to the Secretary information 
which is required by regulations or di-
rectives in connection with any loan 
that is covered by a contract of insur-
ance under title I of the National Hous-
ing Act. 

(c) Amount of penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $11,864 for each violation, up 
to a limit of $2,372,677 for all violations 
committed during any one-year period. 
Each violation shall constitute a sepa-
rate violation as to each mortgage or 
loan application. 

[65 FR 9087, Feb. 23, 2000, as amended at 72 
FR 5588, Feb. 6, 2007; 77 FR 51468, Aug. 24, 
2012; 78 FR 4059, Jan. 18, 2013; 81 FR 38935, 
June 15, 2016; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 
32793, July 16, 2018; 84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 
85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 
2021; 87 FR 24420, Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, 
Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.40 Loan guarantees for Indian 
housing. 

(a) General. The Assistant Secretary 
for Public and Indian Housing (or his/ 
her designee) may initiate a civil 
money penalty action against any 
mortgagee or holder of a guarantee cer-
tificate who knowingly and materially 
violates the provisions of 12 U.S.C. 
1715z–13a(g)(2) concerning loan guaran-
tees for Indian housing. 

(b) Continuing violation. Each day 
that a violation continues shall con-
stitute a separate violation. 

(c) Amount of penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $11,864 for each violation, up 
to a limit of $2,372,677 for all violations 
committed during any one-year period. 
Each violation shall constitute a sepa-
rate violation as to each mortgage or 
loan application. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 65 
FR 9087, Feb. 23, 2000; 68 FR 12788, Mar. 17, 
2003; 72 FR 5588, Feb. 6, 2007; 78 FR 4059, Jan. 
18, 2013; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 2016; 82 FR 
24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, July 16, 2018; 
84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 
2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 87 FR 24420, 
Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.45 Multifamily and section 202 or 
811 mortgagors. 

(a) Definitions. The following defini-
tions apply to this section only: 

(1) Agent employed to manage the prop-
erty that has an identity of interest and 
identity of interest agent. An entity: 

(i) That has management responsi-
bility for a project; 

(ii) In which the ownership entity, in-
cluding its general partner or partners 
(if applicable) and its officers or direc-
tors (if applicable), has an ownership 
interest; and 

(iii) Over which the ownership entity 
exerts effective control. 

(2) Effective control. The ability to di-
rect, alter, supervise, or otherwise in-
fluence the actions, policies, decisions, 
duties, employment, or personnel of 
the management agent. 

(3) Entity. An individual corporation; 
company; association; partnership; au-
thority; firm; society; trust; state, 
local government or agency thereof; or 
any other organization or group of peo-
ple. 

(4) Multifamily property. Property 
that includes 5 or more living units and 
that has a mortgage insured, co-in-
sured, or held pursuant to the National 
Housing Act (12 U.S.C. 1702 et seq.). 

(5) Ownership interest. Any direct or 
indirect interest in the stock, partner-
ship interests, beneficial interests (for 
a trust) or other medium of equity par-
ticipation. An indirect interest in-
cludes equity participation in any enti-
ty that holds a management interest 
(e.g. general partner, managing mem-
ber of an LLC, majority stockholder, 
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trustee) or minimum equity interest 
(e.g., a 25% or more limited partner, 
10% or more stockholder) in the owner-
ship entity of the management agent. 

(6) Section 202 or 811 property. Prop-
erty that includes 5 or more living 
units and that has a mortgage held 
pursuant to a direct loan or capital ad-
vances under section 202 of the Housing 
Act of 1959 (12 U.S.C. 1701q) or capital 
advances under section 811 of the Cran-
ston-Gonzalez National Affordable 
Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 8013). 

(b) Violation of agreement—(1) General. 
The Assistant Secretary for Housing- 
Federal Housing Commissioner, or his 
or her designee, may initiate a civil 
money penalty action against a mort-
gagor of a section 202 or 811 property or 
a mortgagor, general partner of a part-
nership mortgagor, or any officer or di-
rector of a corporate mortgagor of a 
multifamily property who: 

(i) Has agreed in writing, as a condi-
tion of a transfer of physical assets, a 
flexible subsidy loan, a capital im-
provement loan, a modification of the 
mortgage terms, or a workout agree-
ment, to use nonproject income to 
make cash contributions for payments 
due under the note and mortgage, for 
payments to the reserve for replace-
ments, to restore the project to good 
physical condition, or to pay other 
project liabilities; and 

(ii) Knowingly and materially fails to 
comply with any of the commitments 
listed in paragraph (b)(1)(i) of this sec-
tion. 

(2) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty for each violation under para-
graph (b) of this section is the amount 
of loss that the Secretary would experi-
ence at a foreclosure sale, or a sale 
after foreclosure, of the property in-
volved. 

(c) Other violations. The Assistant 
Secretary for Housing-Federal Housing 
Commissioner, or his or her designee, 
may initiate a civil money penalty ac-
tion against any of the following who 
knowingly and materially take any of 
the actions listed in 12 U.S.C. 1735f– 
15(c)(1)(B): 

(1) Any mortgagor of a multifamily 
property; 

(2) Any general partner of a partner-
ship mortgagor of such property; 

(3) Any officer or director of a cor-
porate mortgagor; 

(4) Any agent employed to manage 
the property that has an identity of in-
terest with the mortgagor, with the 
general partner of a partnership mort-
gagor, or with any officer or director of 
a corporate mortgagor of such prop-
erty; or 

(5) Any member of a limited liability 
company that is the mortgagor of such 
property or is the general partner of a 
limited partnership mortgagor or is a 
partner of a general partnership mort-
gagor. 

(d) Acceptable management. For pur-
poses of this rule, management accept-
able to the Secretary under 12 U.S.C. 
1735f–15(c)(1)(B)(xiv) shall include: 

(1) Fiscal management in accordance 
with HUD regulations and require-
ments; 

(2) Handling of vacancies and 
tenanting in accordance with HUD reg-
ulations and requirements; 

(3) Handling of rent collection in ac-
cordance with HUD regulations and re-
quirements; 

(4) Maintenance in accordance with 
HUD regulations and requirements; 

(5) Compliance with HUD regulations 
and requirements on tenant organiza-
tion; and 

(6) Any other matters that pertain to 
proper management in accordance with 
HUD regulations and requirements. 

(e) Civil money penalty. A consistent 
pattern of violations of HUD program 
requirements, or a single violation that 
causes serious injury to the public or 
tenants, can be a basis for an action to 
assess a civil money penalty. 

(f) Section 202 or 811 projects. The As-
sistant Secretary for Housing-Federal 
Housing Commissioner, or his or her 
designee, may initiate a civil money 
penalty action against any mortgagor 
of a section 202 or 811 property who 
knowingly and materially takes any of 
the actions listed in 12 U.S.C. 1701q– 
1(c)(1). 

(g) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty for each violation under para-
graphs (c) and (f) of this section is 
$59,316. 

(h) Payment of penalty. No payment of 
a civil money penalty levied under this 
section shall be payable out of project 
income. 
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(i) Exceptions. The Secretary may not 
impose penalties under this section for 
a violation, if a material cause of the 
violation is the failure of the Sec-
retary, an agent of the Secretary, or a 
public housing agency to comply with 
an existing agreement. 

[66 FR 63441, Dec. 6, 2001, as amended at 68 
FR 12788, Mar. 17, 2003; 72 FR 5588, Feb. 6, 
2007; 74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009; 78 FR 4059, Jan. 
18, 2013; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 2016; 82 FR 
24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, July 16, 2018; 
84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 
2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 87 FR 24420, 
Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.50 GNMA issuers and custodians. 

(a) General. The President of GNMA, 
or his or her designee, may initiate a 
civil money penalty action against a 
GNMA issuer or custodian that know-
ingly and materially violates any pro-
vision of 12 U.S.C. 1723i(b), title III of 
the National Housing Act, or any im-
plementing regulation, handbook, 
guaranty agreement, or contractual 
agreement, or participant letter issued 
by GNMA, or fails to comply with the 
terms of a settlement agreement with 
GNMA. 

(b) Continuing violation. Each day 
that a violation continues shall con-
stitute a separate violation. 

(c) Amount of penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $11,864 for each violation, up 
to a limit of $2,372,677 during any one- 
year period. Each violation shall con-
stitute a separate violation with re-
spect to each pool of mortgages. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 68 
FR 12788, Mar. 17, 2003; 72 FR 5588, Feb. 6, 
2007; 78 FR 4059, Jan. 18, 2013; 81 FR 38935, 
June 15, 2016; 82 FR 24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 
32793, July 16, 2018; 84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 
85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 
2021; 87 FR 24420, Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, 
Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.60 Dealers or sponsored third- 
party originators. 

(a) General. The Assistant Secretary 
for Housing-Federal Housing Commis-
sioner, or his or her designee, may ini-
tiate a civil money penalty action 
against any dealer or sponsored third- 
party originator that violates section 
2(b)(7) of the National Housing Act (12 

U.S.C. 1703). Such violations include, 
but are not limited to: 

(1) Falsifying information on an ap-
plication for dealer approval or re-
approval submitted to a lender; 

(2) Falsifying statements on a HUD 
credit application, improvement con-
tract, note, security instrument, com-
pletion certificate, or other loan docu-
ment; 

(3) Failing to sign a credit applica-
tion if the dealer or sponsored third- 
party originator assisted the borrower 
in completing the application; 

(4) Falsely certifying to a lender that 
the loan proceeds have been or will be 
spent on eligible improvements; 

(5) Falsely certifying to a lender that 
the property improvements have been 
completed; 

(6) Falsely certifying that a borrower 
has not been given or promised any 
cash payment, rebate, cash bonus, or 
anything of more than nominal value 
as an inducement to enter into a loan 
transaction; 

(7) Making a false representation to a 
lender with respect to the credit-
worthiness of a borrower or the eligi-
bility of the improvements for which a 
loan is sought. 

(b) Continuing violation. Each day 
that a violation continues shall con-
stitute a separate violation. 

(c) Amount of penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $11,864 for each violation, up 
to a limit for any particular person of 
$2,372,677 during any one-year period. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 68 
FR 12788, Mar. 17, 2003; 72 FR 5588, Feb. 6, 
2007; 77 FR 51467, Aug. 24, 2012; 78 FR 4059, 
Jan. 18, 2013; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 2016; 82 FR 
24524, May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, July 16, 2018; 
84 FR 9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 
2020; 86 FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 87 FR 24420, 
Apr. 26, 2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.65 Failure to disclose lead-based 
paint hazards. 

(a) General. The Director of the Office 
of Lead Hazard Control and Healthy 
Homes, or his or her designee, may ini-
tiate a civil money penalty action 
against any person who knowingly vio-
lates 42 U.S.C. 4852d. 
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(b) Amount of penalty. The maximum 
penalty is $21,018 for each violation. 

[65 FR 50593, Aug. 18, 2000, as amended at 76 
FR 36851, June 22, 2011; 79 FR 35042, June 19, 
2014; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 2016; 82 FR 24524, 
May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, July 16, 2018; 84 FR 
9453, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 
FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 87 FR 24420, Apr. 26, 
2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 2023] 

§ 30.68 Section 8 owners. 
(a) Definitions. The following defini-

tions apply to this section only: 
Agent employed to manage the property 

that has an identity of interest and iden-
tity of interest agent. An entity: 

(1) That has management responsi-
bility for a project; 

(2) In which the ownership entity, in-
cluding its general partner or partners 
(if applicable), has an ownership inter-
est; and 

(3) Over which the ownership entity 
exerts effective control. 

Effective control. The ability to direct, 
alter, supervise, or otherwise influence 
the actions, policies, decisions, duties, 
employment, or personnel of the man-
agement agent. 

Entity. An individual corporation; 
company; association; partnership; au-
thority; firm; society; trust; state, 
local government or agency thereof; or 
any other organization or group of peo-
ple. 

Ownership interest. Any direct or indi-
rect interest in the stock, partnership 
interests, beneficial interests (for a 
trust) or other medium of equity par-
ticipation. An indirect interest in-
cludes equity participation in any enti-
ty that holds a management interest 
(e.g. general partner, managing mem-
ber of an LLC, majority stockholder, 
trustee) or minimum equity interest 
(e.g., a 25% or more limited partner, 
10% or more stockholder) in the owner-
ship entity of the management agent. 

(b) General. The Assistant Secretary 
for Housing—Federal Housing Commis-
sioner, or his or her designee, or the 
Assistant Secretary for Public and In-
dian Housing, or his or her designee, 
may initiate a civil money penalty 
against any owner, any general partner 
of a partnership owner, or any agent 
employed to manage the property that 
has an identity of interest with the 
owner or the general partner of a part-

nership owner of a property receiving 
project-based assistance under section 
8 of the United States Housing Act of 
1937 (42 U.S.C. 1437f) for a knowing and 
material breach of a housing assistance 
payments contract. Examples of cov-
ered violations include, but are not 
limited to, the following: 

(1) Failure to provide decent, safe, 
and sanitary housing pursuant to sec-
tion 8 of the United States Housing Act 
of 1937 and 24 CFR 5.703; or 

(2) Knowing or willful submission of 
false, fictitious, or fraudulent state-
ments or requests for housing assist-
ance payments to the Secretary or to 
any department or agency of the 
United States. 

(c) Maximum penalty. The maximum 
penalty for each violation under this 
section is $46,102. 

(d) Payment of penalty. No payment of 
a civil money penalty levied under this 
section shall be payable out of project 
income. 

(e) Exceptions. The Secretary may not 
impose penalties under this section for 
a violation, if a material cause of the 
violation is the failure of the Sec-
retary, an agent of the Secretary, or a 
public housing agency to comply with 
an existing agreement. 

[66 FR 63442, Dec. 6, 2001, as amended at 74 
FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009; 78 FR 4059, Jan. 18, 
2013; 81 FR 38935, June 15, 2016; 82 FR 24525, 
May 30, 2017; 83 FR 32793, July 16, 2018; 84 FR 
9454, Mar. 15, 2019; 85 FR 13044, Mar. 6, 2020; 86 
FR 14373, Mar. 16, 2021; 87 FR 24421, Apr. 26, 
2022; 88 FR 9748, Feb. 15, 2023] 

Subpart C—Procedures 

§ 30.70 Prepenalty notice. 

(a) Prior to determining whether to 
issue a complaint under § 30.85, the offi-
cial designated in subpart B of this 
part, or his or her designee (or the 
chairperson of the Mortgagee Review 
Board, or his or her designee, in ac-
tions under § 30.35), shall issue a writ-
ten notice to the respondent. This 
prepenalty notice shall include the fol-
lowing: 

(1) That HUD is considering seeking a 
civil money penalty; 

(2) The specific violations alleged; 
(3) The maximum civil money pen-

alty that may be imposed; 
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(4) The opportunity to reply in writ-
ing to the designated program official 
within 30 days after receipt of the no-
tice; 

(5) That failure to respond within the 
30-day period may result in issuance of 
a complaint under § 30.85 without con-
sideration of any information that the 
respondent may wish to provide; and 

(6) That if a complaint is issued 
under § 30.85, the respondent may re-
quest a hearing before an administra-
tive law judge in accordance with 
§ 30.95. 

(b) Obligation to preserve documents. 
Upon receipt of the prepenalty notice, 
the respondent is required to preserve 
and maintain all documents or data, 
including electronically stored data, 
within his or her possession or control 
that may relate to the violations al-
leged in the prepenalty notice. The De-
partment shall also preserve such docu-
ments or data upon the issuance of the 
prepenalty notice. 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.75 Response to prepenalty notice. 
(a) The response shall be in a format 

prescribed in the prepenalty notice. 
The response shall address the factors 
set forth in § 30.80 and include any ar-
guments opposing the imposition of a 
civil money penalty that the respond-
ent may wish to present. 

(b) In any case where respondent 
seeks to raise ability to pay as an af-
firmative defense or argument in miti-
gation, the respondent shall provide 
documentary evidence as part of its re-
sponse. 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.80 Factors in determining amount 
of civil money penalty. 

After determining that a respondent 
has committed a violation as described 
in subpart B of this part that subjects 
the respondent to liability under this 
part, the officials designated in subpart 
B of this part shall consider the fol-
lowing factors to determine the 
amount of penalty to seek against a re-
spondent, if any: 

(a) The gravity of the offense; 
(b) Any history of prior offenses; 
(c) The ability to pay the penalty, 

which ability shall be presumed unless 

specifically raised as an affirmative de-
fense or mitigating factor by the re-
spondent; 

(d) The injury to the public; 
(e) Any benefits received by the vio-

lator; 
(f) The extent of potential benefit to 

other persons; 
(g) Deterrence of future violations; 
(h) The degree of the violator’s culpa-

bility; and 
(i) Such other matters as justice may 

require. 
(j) In addition to the above factors, 

with respect to violations under 
§§ 30.45, 30.55, 30.60, and 30.68, the Assist-
ant Secretary for Housing—Federal 
Housing Commissioner, or his or her 
designee, or the Assistant Secretary 
for Public and Indian Housing, or his or 
her designee, shall also consider: 

(1) Any injury to tenants; and/or 
(2) Any injury to lot owners. 
(k) HUD may consider the factors 

listed in paragraphs (a) through (k) of 
this section to determine the appro-
priateness of imposing a penalty under 
§ 30.35(c)(2); however, HUD cannot 
change the amount of the penalty 
under § 30.35(c)(2). 

[74 FR 2751, Jan. 15, 2009, as amended at 82 
FR 24525, May 30, 2017] 

§ 30.85 Complaint. 

(a) General. Upon the expiration of 
the period for the respondent to submit 
a response to the prepenalty notice, 
the official designated in subpart B of 
this part, or his or her designee (or the 
Mortgagee Review Board in actions 
under § 30.35) shall determine whether 
to seek a civil money penalty. Such de-
termination shall be based upon a re-
view of the prepenalty notice, the re-
sponse, if any, and the factors listed at 
§ 30.80. A determination by the Mort-
gagee Review Board to seek a civil 
money penalty shall be by a majority 
vote of the Board. 

(b) If a determination is made to seek 
a civil money penalty, government 
counsel shall issue a complaint to the 
respondent on behalf of the officials 
listed at subpart B of this part or the 
Mortgagee Review Board for violations 
under § 30.35. The complaint shall be 
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served upon respondent and simulta-
neously filed with the Office of Hear-
ings and Appeals, and shall state the 
following: 

(1) The factual basis for the decision 
to seek a penalty; 

(2) The applicable civil money pen-
alty statute; 

(3) The amount of penalty sought; 
(4) The right to submit a response in 

writing, within 15 days of receipt of the 
complaint, requesting a hearing on any 
material fact in the complaint, or on 
the appropriateness of the penalty 
sought; 

(5) The address to which a response 
must be sent; 

(6) That the failure to submit a re-
sponse may result in the imposition of 
the penalty in the amount sought. 

(c) A copy of this part and of 24 CFR 
part 26, subpart B, shall be included 
with the complaint. 

(d) Service of the complaint. The com-
plaint shall be served on the respond-
ent by first class mail, personal deliv-
ery, or other means. 

(e) Before taking an action under 
§§ 30.35 for violation of 12 U.S.C. § 1735f– 
14(b)(1)(D) or (F), 30.36, or 30.50 for vio-
lation of 12 U.S.C. 1723i(b)(1)(G) or (I), 
the Secretary shall inform the Attor-
ney General of the United States, 
which may be accomplished by pro-
viding a copy of the complaint. The 
Secretary shall include in the body of 
the complaint a statement confirming 
that this action was taken. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 74 
FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.90 Response to the complaint. 
(a) Request for a hearing. If the re-

spondent desires a hearing before an 
administrative law judge, the respond-
ent shall submit a request for a hearing 
to HUD and the Office of Hearings and 
Appeals no later than 15 days following 
receipt of the complaint, as required by 
statute. This mandated period cannot 
be extended. 

(b) Answer. In any case in which the 
respondent has requested a hearing, 
the respondent shall serve upon HUD 
and file with the Office of Hearings and 
Appeals a written answer to the com-
plaint within 30 days of receipt of the 
complaint, unless such time is ex-
tended by the administrative law judge 

for good cause. The answer shall in-
clude the admission or denial of each 
allegation of liability made in the com-
plaint; any defense on which the re-
spondent intends to rely; any reasons 
why the civil money penalty should be 
less than the amount sought in the 
complaint, based on the factors listed 
at § 30.80; and the name, address, and 
telephone number of the person who 
will act as the respondent’s representa-
tive, if any. 

(c) Filing with the administrative law 
judges. HUD shall file the complaint 
and response with the Docket Clerk, 
Office of Hearings and Appeals, in ac-
cordance with § 26.38 of this chapter. If 
no response is submitted, then HUD 
may file a motion for default judg-
ment, together with a copy of the com-
plaint, in accordance with § 26.41 of this 
title. 

[61 FR 50215, Sept. 24, 1996, as amended at 74 
FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009; 74 FR 7313, Feb. 17, 
2009; 74 FR 4635, Jan. 26, 2009; 78 FR 4060, Jan. 
18, 2013] 

§ 30.95 Hearings. 
Hearings under this part shall be con-

ducted in accordance with the proce-
dures applicable to hearings in accord-
ance with the Administrative Proce-
dure Act, set forth in 24 CFR part 26. 

[74 FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009] 

§ 30.100 Settlement of a civil money 
penalty action. 

The officials listed at subpart B of 
this part, or their designees (or the 
Mortgagee Review Board, or designee, 
for violations under § 30.35), are author-
ized to enter into settlement agree-
ments resolving civil money penalty 
actions that may be brought under part 
30. 

[74 FR 2752, Jan. 15, 2009] 

PART 35—LEAD-BASED PAINT POI-
SONING PREVENTION IN CER-
TAIN RESIDENTIAL STRUCTURES 

Subpart A—Disclosure of Known Lead- 
Based Paint Hazards Upon Sale or 
Lease of Residential Property 

Sec. 
35.80 Purpose. 
35.82 Scope and applicability. 
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